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EDF Trading Limited
Annual Report and financial statements

Strategic Report
The directors present their Strategic Report for EDF Trading Limited ("the Company" or "EDFT") for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Principal activity

EDF Trading Limited and its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, joint arrangements, joint ventures, and
associates, together the “Group”, is a leader in global wholesale energy products (power, gas, coal, freight, LNG and carbon
emissions credits) and is active in the wholesale markets, and related activities including the management of transportation
and logistics. :

Review and analysis of business during the year
Business review

The Company’s year on year traded volumes were:

Traded volumes per commodity (physical and derivatives) Unit 2021 2020
Power TWh 2,109 2,371

Oil Million barrels 1,241 1,047
CO, Million tonnes . 1,089 541

Gas Billion therms 215 248

The Group's key performance indicators 2021 2020
Profit before interest and tax [ Operating profit + Other gains and losses | €770m €514m
Capital employed [ Net assets ] €3,299m €2,788m
Return on capital employed [ PBIT / Capital employed ] 23% 18%
Employee Survey - engagement index 80% 84%

Financial performance

EDFT has continued to optimise positions and create value within the Electricité de France (EDF) Group. In 2021 the EDFT
group generated €950.2m net trading margin (2020: €679.5m). The Group's profit before interest and tax for 2021 is
€770.1m (2020: €513.8m).

Financial position

The Group's net assets increased from €2,788m at 31 December 2020 to €3,299m at 31 December 2021 as a result of the
positive net earnings offset by a dividend being paid of €451m (2020: €612m). Working capital usage in the period has
increased with the net liability now a net asset of €2,812m (2020: €41m liability) as a result of the increase in market volatility
and resultant collateral requirements.

Market conditions during 2021

Exceptional energy market conditions arose during 2021, including significant increases in commodity prices and price
volatility. This has been reflected in the 2021 performance highlighted above as well as the inflation of both total assets and
total liabilities due to the price impacts on positions held, along with elevated margining requirements.

Governance, risks and uncertainties

EDFT continues to maintain an effective system of internal controls, market risk management and credit risk management,
for details please refer to the Risk Management section of the Directors’ Report. The directors took steps to mitigate risks
related to the ongoing impact of energy market volatility, the United Kingdom's exit from the European Union and the Covid-
19 pandemic. For details of steps taken please refer to the Going Concern Statement section of the Directors' Report.

An analysis of the principal risks and other associated risks to the Company has been included within the Directors' Report.

Section 172(1) statement

The Board of the Company is required by law to consider the impact of any decision on the interests of employees,
suppliers, customers, community and other stakeholders. The scope of this consideration includes the need to act fairly and
maintain high levels of business contact. .

The directors foster effective stakeholder relationships aligned to the Company’s purpose. The Board is responsible for

overseeing meaningful engagement with stakeholders, including the workforce, and having regard to their views when taking
decisions.
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Strategic Report (continued)

The Board is committed to social responsibility and environmental sustainability, which is demonstrated through the
culture of Zero Harm (ensuring the safety, health and wellbeing of all Group employees), creating a positive environmental
and social impact, and being an employer of choice.

Annual employee engagement surveys are performed to highlight areas for improvement. The Board considers the results
of all employee engagement surveys as a good barometer of the workforce's confidence in the Company's strategic
direction, optimism in the future and career opportunities. The engagement survey results are reviewed alongside those of
the wider EDF Group. Within the EDF Group, EDFT staff engagement scores rank consistently high compared to Group
peers. Actions taken as a result of employee engagement surveys are communicated to all employees.

The Company has reported its gender pay gap information in line with the legislative requirements.

Sources and uses of Cash

Cash is principally generated from commodity trading and related asset optimisation less applicable operational and
financial charges.

Cash is utilised by day to day operations of the business (working capital) in addition to appropriate investment in both
intangible and tangible fixed assets. Working capital utilisation includes collateral and guarantees required to trade and
remain active within the energy markets.

Liquidity is actively monitored against the Group's potential exposures. As detailed within the notes to the financial
statements, the Group participates in a cash management programme with the wider EDF Group and has access to
significant liquidity.

Future developments

EDFT's management, with the full support of the Board of Directors, will strive to continue to achieve strong trading
performance across both mature and evolving energy markets, alongside the development of new products. The EDFT
Group aims to continue serving as a pioneer and platform for EDF Group's development into new energy services and
geographies.

The Group has noted the increased risks generated by the current geopolitical situation, including the ongoing conflict in
Ukraine, and has adopted mitigating actions. Directors continue to monitor the performance of the business in this
challenging environment, to ensure the Group adapts adequately to different working methods and unprecedented market
conditions whilst continuing to be compliant with applicable laws and regulations. The Company actively encourages
engagement of staff with these ongoing challenges and continues to prepare the Group for the various possible outcomes
by strengthening controls, financial stress testing, and preparing tactical solutions as the situation develops.

The directors have considered the impact of sanctions and political actions on the energy market and the Group's position
within this market. The Group's positions are being closely monitored and no material impact is expected as a result of
direct exposure.

Post reporting events

.Aside from the evolving geopolitical events outlined above, which are considered non-adjusting events, no significant
events have been noted since the end of the financial year, as detailed within the notes to the financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the board by:

S Billion

Chief Financial Officer

25 May 2022

Third Floor, Cardinal Place
80 Victoria Street

London

SW1E 5JL
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The directors which served the Company during the year and since year end to the date of this report were as follows:

Marc Benayoun

Bruno Bensasson
Béatrice Bigois

Sylvie Billion (appointed 01/04/21)
Béatrice Buffon

Sabine Le Gac

Xavier Girre

Robert Guyler

Stanislas Martin

Laurent Reber
Stéphanie Roger-Selwan

Results and dividends

The Group recognised profit for the year of €957.0m (2020: €450.5m). The accounts for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out on pages 19 to 55. The Company declared and paid out a dividend of €451m during the reporting
year (2020: €612m). The dividend was paid from distributable reserves.

Risk Management

EDFT is highly disciplined in its application of business controls. We work within a comprehensive framework
encompassing strong processes, good governance, systematic risk and control reviews and a continuous
improvement approach to ensure every activity is properly managed and controlled with a view to achieve "best in
class" performance. Similarly, the global control framework itself is regularly assessed and revised when necessary to
reflect changes affecting the markets in which we operate.

We have enhanced our control mechanisms in line with the stronger trading and banking regulations introduced since
the 2008 financial crisis (EMIR and REMIT in particular). All of these changes are set against a marketplace in which
traditional supply and demand pricing continues to be influenced by regional and national policies aimed at reducing
energy consumption and building a lower carbon economy, whilst regulatory policies strive for greater market
transparency and reduction in systemic risk.

Risk Governance
The Board of Directors are responsible for approving risk management principles and policies, and ensuring that
EDFT's management maintains an effective system of internal controls.

The Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and the Chief Risk Officer ("CRQ") are responsible for the management of risks
through the roll-out and control of an effective framework of risk management principles and policies. The CEO has
established three global committees to oversee risk management:

Global Risk Committee ("GRC"):

The GRC oversees all aspects of market risk controls for EDFT's existing trading activities. The Committee sets the
trading risk limits and approves all changes to existing risk limits ensuring that they remain appropriate in relation to
EDFT's Risk Mandate and Company capital utilisation. The Committee manages breaches of limits and proposes the
course of action to the CEO and/or the Board, where appropriate. The Committee regularly reviews the trading
strategies and market risks across the entire portfolio and approves any changes in EDFT's market risk
measurements and management framework.

New Business Committee (“NBC"):

The NBC oversees all aspects of market risk and operational risk management for proposed new/exotic transaction
types and business ventures. The Committee assesses the strategic fit with EDFT's existing business, any embedded
risks, economics.and risk/return profile of the new transaction or business venture and if the Company is adequately
capitalised. The Committee determines whether EDFT is prepared to accept the risk associated with new/exotic
transaction types and activities and, if appropriate, new risk parameters.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Risk Governance (continued)

Global Credit Committee ("GCC"):

The GCC oversees all aspects of credit risk management. The Credit Committee establishes credit policies and
approves appropriate credit limits for each counterpart. Credit limits, which define our credit risk parameters with each
counterpart, are approved by the Credit Committee once it has reviewed a counterpart credit assessment. The GCC is
also in charge of embedding the Know Your Customer ("KYC") policy for the Group.

Risk management organisation

Compliance with all limits and control procedures is monitored by the risk management department, which is
independent of the trading business and reports directly into the Executive Committee. The risk management
department is responsible for reviewing and approving pricing and risk management models, and for reporting market
and credit risk exposures.

Market risks

The primary market risks within the business are the exposures to energy prices, foreign exchange, and interest rates.
Value-at-risk is our primary mechanism for market risk measurement but is also complemented by a number of other
measurements/limits such as stress tests, volumetric limits and peak to current limits depending on the product. All
positions are recorded and monitored in either trading books or structured transaction accounts, as appropriate.

Value-at-Risk ("VaR")

The Group uses daily VaR measures as the primary mechanism for market risk control. The daily VaR measure is the
maximum potential loss that might arise if current positions were unchanged over one business day at a 97.5%
confidence level. The Risk Committee has allocated VaR limits to all trading desks and daily risk reports are produced
for all major risk categories - power, gas, oil, LNG, LPG and carbon emission credits - to monitor the level of risk. At 31
December 2021, the VaR for the Group trading books was €26,213k (2020 €7,150k). The average VaR utilisation
during 2021 was €19,700k (2020: €7,742k). As VaR does not always provide a direct indication of the potential size of
losses, additional techniques are employed to monitor market risk, including various types of stress testing.

Trading books

The Risk Committee has established a trading book structure. Trading books define the reporting structure for all
activity in forward contracts, swaps, options and futures, and are categorised by global business unit (e.g. European
Power) and trading desk (e.g. UK Power).

Structured transaction accounts
Structured transaction accounts are used to account for longer-term risks or illiquid basis risks, which arise from long-
term over-the-counter transactions. All new structured transactions require the approval of the NBC.

The NBC also considers and quantifies the capital requirements of new structured transactions. On the execution of a
structured transaction, the liquid, hedgeable risks are transferred to the relevant trading books.

Reviews of market liquidity are conducted regularly to ensure that hedgeable risks are transferred to trading books and
that quantum of non hedgeable exposure is fully understood and controlled. The structured transaction accounts are
subject to regular stress testing by the Market Risk department. The capital requirements for structured transactions
are reviewed and updated on a regular basis by the Market Risk department.

Credit risk
EDFT's credit risk management is a global discipline supported by consistent systems, processes and controls across
Europe and Asia.

The Global Credit Committee, which includes members of the Executive Committee, review and approve credit risk
methodologies, frameworks and controls. Counterpart exposure and term limits based on a qualitative and quantitative
assessment of the counterpart are evaluated by a Global or Loca!l Credit Committee. The Credit Committees review
and approve maximum financial exposure and tenor by counterpart . The assessment includes a review of a sector,
business model, corporate structure and management. A detailed quantitative assessment includes analysis of
financial ratios, cash flow and liquidity assessment as well as an estimation of the potential future financial exposure to
the specific counterpart. The analysis is used to determine an internal rating to calculate default probabilities, recovery
rates and credit pricing.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
The following table summarises the internal rating of counterparts and splits our counterpart exposure accordingly.

>AA A BBB BB B . c>
2021 0% 5% 78% 16% <1% <1%
2020 1% 1% 64% 22% 1% <1%

A credit risk culture established across all business functions provides the foundation of EDFT's credit risk
management processes. Exposures are reviewed daily and limit utilisation reports together with directives to manage
exposures are sent to all commercial teams on a daily basis. The credit team works in partnership with the legal team
to ensure effective contractual mitigation for example: close-out netting, third party guarantees, liens, collateral
(including cash and letters of credit) or contractual covenants. The financial effect of the above is to offset any potential
settlement exposure and then mark-to-market exposure.

EDFT has implemented a credit event identification programme to ensure that in the event of deterioration in market
conditions, sector or counterparties, action is taken to minimise loss. The plan includes continuous assessment and
intensive credit monitoring of counterparties, sectors and sovereigns.

EDFT works to support the development of credit risk management and mitigation techniques across the global energy
sector. There is active participation in industry working groups involved in the development of contractual arrangements
and clearing initiatives.

Interest rate risk
The Group also monitors its interest rate risk, considering any material exposures. Interest rate swaps and futures are
used to manage the interest rate risk arising from medium-term trading positions and long-term structured transactions.

Operational and other risks
Operational risk is the exposure to losses that may occur as a consequence of carrying out physical operations, and
from errors resulting from failures in internal processes or systems.

We assess the level of operational risk across all business lines and physical assets, implementing measures to
mitigate areas of exposure including health and safety, environmental and operational performance. We employ a top-
down approach to risk mapping and perform a bottom-up review of our key risks across all main desks in order to
further increase the robustness of our risk matrix.

Our business transaction policies, which govern the activities of all employees, are regularly updated to address
operational risk. Central to this is that procedures for gaining authorisation for new business or trading instruments
must undergo a rigorous operational authorisation process.

For each physical functional area of our business we have documented and implemented operating procedures
designed to prevent the occurrence of operational errors. However, should an error occur, we have early detection
mechanisms in place to allow prompt implementation of corrective actions to minimise the impact.

In the critical area of system outage risk, we have back-up systems and procedures to manage every material degree
of incident ranging from short-term disruptions to full-scale disaster recovery.

Performance indicators are used to monitor the effectiveness of key operational processes and provide assurance that
the processes are functioning effectively. The indicators are reviewed by individual business managers and reported to
the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Commercial Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Risk Officer on a regular basis.

Legal risks

The legal team is involved in every significant transaction. Agreements cannot be concluded without their sign off. The
legal team provides essential advice and guidance to senior management on all business issues and ensures that
business is conducted in a manner that complies with all legal and regulatory requirements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Accounting and valuation

The Group uses mark-to-market accounting for positions in accordance with international accounting principles. Where
market information is unavailable, such as cross-commodity correlations, time-spread correlations and forward
volatilities, then internal models are used on a deal by deal basis. The overall valuation of the trading portfalio includes
an allowance for credit and operational risks. The market prices used to value the Group's positions take account of
the cost of closing out the Group's net trading position in the market.

Capital management

EDFT has estabtished procedures to ensure it has adequate and sufficient capital allocated to its business activities.
The methodology is broadly based on the Basel Accord, which includes the assessment of market, credit and
operational risk capital. Risk capital is allocated to trading activities based on a multiple of 15 times the VaR approved
by the Risk Committee. Further capital is allocated to structured transactions based on a stress testing analysis.

Capital requirements for operational risk have been calculated based on estimated losses over a three-year period.
The estimated losses are based on historical operational performance and an analysis of loss experiences. Estimated
losses are reviewed periodically to ensure consistency with internal operational risk factors such as transaction
turnover and error rates.

EDFT has also developed a Return on capital employed ("ROCE") metric to measure and assess the performance of
business units based on the level of economic capital necessary to produce net income. While the range of ROCE
varies across business units, EDFT's overall ROCE stands at 23% for 2021 (2020: 18%) compared to a weighted
average cost of capital ("WACC") of 4.9% (2020: 4.9%) representing a significant level of value creation.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity management within EDFT has two principal purposes. Firstly, to ensure that sufficient cash is available to
meet all contractual commitments as they fall due and, secondly, to ensure that we have sufficient funding to withstand
stressed market conditions or an extreme event.

The Group’s liquid resources include amounts placed under cash pooling arrangements with EDF. The Group pools
euro, sterling and US dollar cash balances on a daily basis. The cash pooled balances are classified as cash and cash
equivalents, are interest bearing and are callable by EDFT on demand.

Foreign exchange risk

The Euro is the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency of the Group. The functional
currency of subsidiary undertakings is that which is most appropriate for the principal trading activity. The Group also
transacts in other currencies, principally British pound (UK power and gas) and US dollars (coal, freight and LNG).
When currency exposure arises as a result of purchase and sale commitments in foreign currency, forward foreign
exchange transactions are used to hedge the exposure.

Integrated IT

Fit-for-purpose IT is at the heart of EDFT's business operations and supports our ability to price accurately, develop
new products and structures, deliver embedded transaction monitoring and controls, and comply with new rules and
regulations. It provides us with a consistent risk management framework incorporating standardised systems,
processes and controls throughout all our offices. The functionality of our systems is such that it enables our risk
teams to spend more time analysing data rather than compiling it, which improves the speed and accuracy of decision-
making.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Company secretary
Guido Santi has served as company secretary for the full year.

Disabled employees

Applications for employment: by people with disabilities are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitude, skills
and relevant experience of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort is
made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues and that appropriate training is arranged (including re-
training if practical and reasonable adjustments to their existing role if possible). It is the policy of the Group and
Company that the recruitment, training, career development and promotion of employees with disabilities should, as far
as possible, be identical to that of other employees.

Directors' indemnity

The directors have the benefit of the indemnity provisions contained in the Company’s Articles of Association
(‘Articles’), and the Company has maintained throughout the year directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for the
benefit of the Company, the directors and its officers. The Company has entered into qualifying third party indemnity
arrangements for the benefit of all its directors in a form and scope which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and which were in force throughout the year and remain in force.

Business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

The directors regularly consider business relationships with suppliers, customers and other key stakeholders. As part
of the Group's role within the industry it actively participates in industry wide forums and shares best practice with
business partners.

As part of the procurement and supplier management process the Group carries out extensive KYC checks to ensure
the arrangements being entered into are appropriate.

Climate related risks

Due to the Group's position as the interface to the carbon market for the wider EDF Group, it is pro-active in
monitoring and analysing climate related risks. As a result, EDFT is positioning itself to help other EDF Group entities
manage their own future climate related risk.

The Group is constantly monitoring developing markets for potential entry. These developing markets will help play a
role in the energy transition such as Biofuels or PPA (Power Purchase Agreements) arrangements.
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Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Reporting and Energy Consumption (kWh)

Reporting period

1 January 2021 - 31 December 2021

Baseline year

FY20

Consolidation

Operational control

Boundary All UK operations and facilities are included.

summary Scope 1 emissions have been excluded as this is expected to be negligible due to the nature of the business.
There has not been any significant company travel in FY20 or FY21 as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
the emissions from air conditioning and refrigeration units are excluded due to the cost of data collection.
Scope 2 emissions have excluded the electricity consumption from the offices outside of the UK due to the
cost of data collection, these are expected to be negligible due to the comparative size of these offices.

Consistency with {Organisations are encouraged to align information to financial years as to aid comparability and consistency of

financial information with financial performance. SECR reporting has been prepared on an annual basis to 31

statements December 2021 in line with the Group's period end.

Emission factor |{DEFRA GHG emission factors for the period have been used for all emissions sources.

data source

Assessment The footprint is calculated in accordance with the Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol and Environmental

methodology

Reporting Guidelines, including streamlined energy and carbon reporting guidance. Scope 2 reporting uses the
market-based calculation approach.

Estimations

As noted above the impact of the emissions excluded has been estimated as negligible to the Group.

Intensity ratio

Emissions per €m operating expenses.

The group has assessed its emissions and energy consumption on the basis of the exclusions noted above. This has been
assessed for the periods reported in these results.

Scope 1 GHG emissions have been excluded as this is expected to be negligible due to the nature of the business. There has not
been any significant company travel in FY20 or FY21 as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and the emissions from air
conditioning and refrigeration units are excluded due to the cost of data collection.

Scope 2 GHG emissions are comprised of the emissions associated with electricity consumption by the Group. This data
excludes the electricity consumption from the offices outside of the UK due to the cost of data collection, these are expected to be
negligible due to the comparative size of these offices. )

Scope 3 GHG emissions have not been noted as the Group does not purchase commercial fuels for its own use.

CO2 equivalent factors are used which ensures we have reported on all of the emissions sources required under the Companies
Act 2006 Regulations. Consumption considers the Group activities with certain exclusions as outlined above.

The Group's CO2 emissions and supporting metrics for the period and comparative period are detailed in the following table:

Year ended Year ended

2021 2020

Tonnes Tonnes
Scope 1 CO2 emissions - -
Scope 2 CO2 emissions (Market-based) 202 271
Scope 3 CO2 emissions - -
Total Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 CO2 emissions 202 271
CO02 emissions (Tonnes / €m operating expenses) 1.1 1.7

The Group's kWh consumption for the period and comparative period are detailed in the below table. Scope 2 consumption is
based on the amounts of electricity purchased through the period.

Year ended ~ Year ended

2021 2020

kWh kWh
Scope 1 consumption - -
Scope 2 consumption 959,035 1,294,460
Scope 3 consumption - -
Total Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 consumption 959,035 1,294,460

Variable consumption rates in 2020 and 2021 are as a result of the mixed office use during the multiple lockdowns introduced as
a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Management are looking to further increase efficiency in line with the EDF group's CAP2030 targets. Office energy use is being
reduced by implementing LED lighting.
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Corporate Governance Statement

EDF Trading is part of the EDF Group, a leader in the international wholesale energy markets. It is active throughout
the value chain within the electricity, natural gas, LPG and environmental products markets. It is a 100% owned
subsidiary of EDF, one of the world’s largest electricity generators and a global leader in low carbon energy.

For the financial year ending 31 December 2021, EDFT has continued to act in accordance with the corporate
governance arrangements outlined below in this statement, which are embedded across the EDFT Group (the Group).
The Company also continued to support its parent company Electricité de France (EDF SA), a listed company on the
Euronext Paris, in complying with its obligations under the French Afep-Medef Code.

In addition to the ongoing support provided to EDF SA in complying with its corporate governance arrangements, the
Company takes its own approach to corporate governance very seriously; this is demonstrated through the culture and
behaviours adopted across the Group. The Group applies best governance practices. As part of the implementation of
the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, the Company has reviewed its approach to corporate
governance and has considered the various formal codes that have been published, such as the Wates Principles for
Large Private Companies. Following this review, the Company is confident that the corporate governance practices
already adopted are well aligned to formal codes such as the Wates Principles, and in many areas go beyond them.
The Company has therefore concluded that formally adopting a corporate governance code in 2021 would not deliver
any significant improvements to the high corporate governance standards already in place, could lead to confusion and
inconsistency of approach with the EDF Group principles, and in certain situations could result in a dilution of
corporate governance standards.

In summary, the Board has carefully considered the matter and has decided to continue to implement the corporate
governance practices already adopted and to support its parent company in complying with the French Afep-Medef
code whilst at the same time persisting in benchmarking itself against the Wates Principles and ensuring best
practises are implemented within its governance. This will ensure that EDFT continues to benefit from the best
governance options whilst also enabling a consistent approach to corporate governance across the wider EDF SA
Group.

The Company operates an effective Board that develops and promotes Company Corporate Governance
arrangements, and ensures the Company values, strategy and culture align with that purpose.

Many of the values of the Company are directly derived from the parent company, via policies such as the Code of
Conduct and the Ethics Charter. The strategy of the Company is also consistent with that of the wider EDF Group,
through the 2030 Vision. The specific culture of the Company is summarised by the focus on ‘Responsibility, Authority
and Accountability’, which permeates all activities.

The Board meets regularly to consider strategic and operational matters, sets the Company values and ensures they
are communicated throughout the Company via written policies, regular presentations and mandatory training.

The Company has an effective Board composition, with a competent chair and a balance of skills, backgrounds,
experience and knowledge, with individual directors having sufficient capacity to make a valuable contribution. The
size of the Board is appropriate to the scale and complexity of the Company.

The directors have given careful consideration to the size and structure of the Board, in order to meet the strategic
needs and challenges of the organisation. The Chair and three other directors are members of the executive
committee of EDF, and the other Board members represent various EDF Group subsidiaries and divisions; and
specialities including finance, legal affairs and risk management. There is a diversity of gender, ethnicity and
backgrounds. All directors appointed have strong backgrounds in areas and sectors which are relevant for the
Company's business and activities. Changes to the composition of the Board, particularly new appointments, are
approved in accordance with the ‘Governance of Subsidiaries and Minority Shareholdings' policy mandated by EDF SA
for the worldwide EDF Group.

Subcommittees of the Board include the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. These are comprised of
the Board members with the most relevant experience and provide detailed oversight to the activities of the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

The operation of the Board, and the training and information provided to directors, is conducted in accordance with the
principles laid out in the EDF Group policy on the ‘Governance of Subsidiaries and Minority Shareholdings'.

The Board and individual directors have a clear understanding of their accountability and responsibilities. The Company’s
policies and procedures support effective decision making and independent challenge.

The Company's constitutional documents set out the authority, role and conduct of directors and regularly requires
independent assessments on business process and strategic reviews from the Group Audit and Risk Divisions and from
third parties.

The directors are confident in the integrity of the information used for decision making. This is due to the Company’s strong
internal procedures in relation to financial reporting, key performance indicators and stakeholder feedback, among other
sources of data. Information provided to the Board as part of its Board Pack, or any other formal process, is verified by the
respective Executive Committee member before presentation or circulation to the Board and, to the extent required, is
periodically audited by external auditors.

Day to day management responsibility for the Company resides with the Executive Committee, whose members have a
range of backgrounds and experience including finance, risk, legal affairs and commercial activities.

The Board promotes the long term sustainable success of the Company by identifying opportunities to create and preserve
value, and establishing oversight for the identification and mitigation of risk.

The Company has a stringent risk management culture through policies, reporting, intemal control and internal assurance,
enabling directors to make robust decisions concerning the principal risks to the Group. The EDF Group has developed a
risk and internal controls policy, which defines key standards the Group companies should be achieving. The Company
assesses itself against these standards, and is audited against them to provide assurance that the risk culture is
appropriate. This enables the directors to confidently make decisions concerning the principal risks. The directors have
agreed on how these risks should be managed or mitigated to reduce the likelihood of their incidence or the magnitude of
their impact.

Members of the Executive Committee sit on key operational committees including the Risk Committee, the Credit
Committee and the New Business Committee. These committees also include heads of department from relevant
specialities and provide comprehensive management of key risks. The conclusions of these committees are shared with
the Board as required.

The Company has an extensive suite of policies and procedures, which are updated regularly and communicated to all
employees. On an annual basis it undertakes a Risk Mapping exercise and produces a detailed Internal Control Self
Assessment. The resuits of these activities are presented to the Board, via the Audit Committee. Any actions required as a
result of these analyses are tracked, and the final conclusions and outcomes are reported to the Audit Committee.

The Board promotes executive remuneration structures aligned to the long term sustainable success of the Company,
taking into account pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The Company is committed to building a sustainable future for all employees. Honouring this commitment means fostering
a work environment where everyone is rewarded fairly for the work they do and the contributions they make to the
Company’s success. This applies to all employees, including the Executive Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is explicitly required to regularly review and approve all contractual terms, salaries,
incentives and benefit plans for the CEO and Executive Committee members. The members of the Remuneration
Committee are able to obtain advice from EDF SA and outside legal or other independent professional advisors to assess
the suitability of the Company’s executive remuneration structures.

The directors of EDFT do not receive any remuneration for their roles as directors as all are employed by the EDF Group
and are remunerated for their primary roles.

Employee consulitation
The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them informed on
matters affecting them as employees and on factors affecting the performance of the Group and the Company.

This is achieved in particular through the EDFT intranet site, which includes updates by management, formal and informat
meetings as appropriate, regular email updates to all staff in the form of a staff bulletin and team meetings as required.
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EDF Trading Limited
Annual Report and financial statements

Directors’ Report (continued)
Statement of going concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out above. The financial position of the Company is set out in the financial statements. The liquidity
position and borrowing facilities of the Company are set out in “Liquidity risk management” and in "Related party
transactions" in note 28. The Company has adequate financial resources. As a consequence, the directors believe that
the Company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully.

The directors have reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis when preparing the
accounts.

The directors are closely monitoring the energy market volatility that has developed through 2021 and up to the date of
these financial statements. The resulting elevated price environment has inflated market and liquidity risk in particular.
The liquidity pressure is driven principally by increased exchange and bilateral margining requirements. The directors
have further reviewed liquidity stress testing prepared by the company, including an extreme downside scenario which
incorporates the downgrading of EDF/EDFT's ratings below investment grade, counterpart defaults, unavailability of
credit facilities from financial institutions, and future capital and margining requirements. The directors concluded that the
facilities in place with EDF SA, which are expected to be renewed or extended as required, for a period of at least 12
months from the approval of these financial statements, are sufficient in these stress scenarios. They have also
considered EDF SA'’s ability to provide this additional support and given the extensive liquidity available to the wider EDF
Group as a whole, this is not considered a risk for the period in question. Based on the assessment performed, the
forecasts indicate the Company remains in a sufficiently liquid financiat position and therefore the directors consider the
Company itself has considerable financial resources to continue its operations.

Other risks, including fraud, foreign exchange, and operational risks have been assessed but are not considered
significantly enhanced in the context of the specific risks outlined above.

Political contributions
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries made any political donations or incurred any political expenditure during
the year or the prior year.

Other information
An indication of likely future developments in the business and particulars of significant events which have occurred since
the end of the financial year has been included in the Strategic Report on pages 4 and 5.

Auditor

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

1. so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and

2. the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

These confirmations are given pursuant to section 418 of the Companies Act 2006 and should be interpreted in
accordance with and subject to those provisions.

KPMG LLP have been reappointed as the Company's auditor pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the board by:

S Billion

Chief Financial Officer

25 May 2022

Third Floor, Cardinal Place
80 Victoria Street

London SW1E 5JL
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EDF Trading Limited
Annual Report and financial statements

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and the parent Company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for each financial
year. Under that law they have elected to prepare both the Group and the parent Company financial statements in
accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards and applicable law.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state-of affairs of the Group and parent Company and of the Group’s profit or loss for that
period. In preparing each of the Group and parent Company financial statements, the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable,

- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards;

» assess the Group and the parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters relating to going concern; and

+ use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
parent Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent
Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
responsible for such internal contro! as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

S Billion
Chief Financial Officer
25 May 2022
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of EDF Trading Limited
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of EDF Trading Limited (‘the Company”) for the year ended 31 December
2021 which comprise the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated .and Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity,
Consolidated Cash Flow statement, Company Cash Flow statement and related notes, including the accounting policies in
note 2.

In our opinion:

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent Company's affairs as at
31 December 2021 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,;

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards;

- the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable taw. Our
responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the
Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going Concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the Group’s and the Company's
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could
have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of
the financial statements (“the going concern period”).

We used our knowledge of the Group, its industry, and the general economic environment to identify the inherent risks to its
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group's and Company's financial resources or ability to
continue operations over the going concern period. The risks that we considered most likely to adversely affect the Group's
and Company's available financial resources over this period were:

The availability of funding and liquidity in the event of a market wide or firm specific stress scenario including the impact of
increased margining requirements as a result of market volatility.

We considered whether the going concern disclosure in note 2 to the financial statements gives a full and accurate
description of the Directors’ assessment of going concern, including the identified risks and, and related sensitivities.

Our conclusions based on this work:
« we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate;
- we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee
that the Group or the Company will continue in operation.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of EDF Trading Limited
Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could indicate
an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures
included:

« Enquiring of directors, senior management, internal control and inspection of policy documentation as to the Group'’s
high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the internal control function, and the Group’s
channel for “whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

- Reading Board, Audit Committee, New Business Committee and Compliance committee meeting minutes.

» Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management.

= Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud throughout
the audit. This included communication from the Group to full scope component audit teams of relevant fraud risks identified
at the Group level and request to full scope component audit teams to report to the Group audit team any instances of fraud
that could give rise to a material misstatement at Group.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets, we perform procedures
to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that Group management may be in a position to
make inappropriate accounting entries and the risk of bias in accounting estimates and judgements such as valuation of
financial instruments. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because revenue
recognition is a highly automated process with minimal opportunity for maniputation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We performed procedures including:
« Identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries to
supporting documentation. These included those posted by senior finance management/ those posted and approved by
the same user/ those posted to unusual accounts; and

« Assessing significant accounting estimates for bias in relation to financial instruments.
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors and senior
management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company's regulatory and legal
correspondence and discussed with the directors and senior management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.
The Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial reporting

legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation, taxation legislation and we assessed the
extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Whilst the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations, we did not identify any others where the consequences
of non-compliance alone could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance
with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing
standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect
material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect
non-compliance with alt laws and regulations.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of EDF Trading Limited

Strategic report and directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors' report. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements
or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

« we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

« in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements; and

« in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

* the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 15, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; assessing the Group and parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the
Group or the parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Sam Scheuringer

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

25 May 2022

18 of 55



EDF Trading Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Net trading income

Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Other gains / (losses)
Investment revenue
Finance costs

Profit before tax

Taxation
Share of profit of associates

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Losses on cash flow hedges arising during the year

Deferred income tax (charge)/credit relating to cash flow hedges
(Losses)/gains on hedges of a net investment in foreign operations
Movement in associates' other comprehensive income '
Foreign currency translation differences on foreign operations

Items reclassified to profit or loss during the year:

Gains on cash flow hedges reclassified to profit or loss

Losses on hedges of a net investment reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation reserve recycled through profit or loss

Other comprehensive incomel/(expense) for the year net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

The accompanying notes from pages 24 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

(o ]

11
16

11
26
16
26

26
26
26

Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
€'000 €'000
950,159 679,451
1,373 4,395
(169,193) (148,873)
(14,543) (18,228)
767,796 516,745
2,261 (2,935)
8,445 9,099
(19,737) (17,072)
758,765 505,837
(157,783) (96,827)
356,006 41,523
956,988 450,533
(3,069) (2,897)
(135) 480
(92,217) 74,317
325 (963)
98,470 (113,127)
3,455 294
(2,373) -
1,049 -
5,505 (41,896)
962,493 408,637

The Company has elected to take the exemption under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from presenting the income

statement of the parent company.
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EDF Trading Limited
Consolidated and Company Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2021

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Non-current assets ’
Intangible assets 13 7,942 - 7,942 -
Property, plant and equipment 14 26,287 43,877 25,742 34,289
Investment in subsidiaries 15 - - 44,129 41,783
Investment in associates 16 1,295,864 1,140,981 750,820 907,484
Prepaid expenses and other assets 19,338 24,451 17,264 36,894
Trade and other receivables 19 162,635 174,303 162,635 174,303
Deferred tax asset 24 22,878 20,001 22,229 17,610
1,534,944 1,403,613 1,030,761 1,212,363
Current assets
Inventories 17 499,880 162,307 439,825 144,883
Derivative financial assets 23 41,830,894 6,484,231 41,752,256 6,480,531
Loans and receivables 21 433,577 10,421 425,722 13
Current tax receivables 9,697 10,319 9,693 10,631
Trade and other receivables 19 16,620,059 2,523,368 16,823,819 2,612,278
Prepaid expenses and other assets 11,173 13,049 10,039 11,595
Cash and cash equivalents 18 1,741,338 1,656,203 1,614,130 1,602,631
61,146,618 10,859,898 61,075,584 10,862,562
Total assets 62,681,562 12,263,511 62,106,345 12,074,925
Current liabilities
Borrowings 22,27 2,942,037 5,320 2,942,010 2,565
Current tax liabilities 81,913 19,301 50,327 18,267
Derivative financial liabilities 23 42,263,994 6,635,312 42,190,821 6,620,258
Trade and other payables 20 14,049,862 2,764,824 14,228,869 2,883,497
59,337,806 9,424,757 59,412,027 9,524,587
Net current assets 1,808,812 1,435,141 1,663,557 1,337,975
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 24 298 163 298 163
Borrowings 22,27 25,839 28,272 25,458 27,780
Trade and other payables 20 5,369 6,943 3,773 4,088
Other liabilities 13,226 15,845 13,226 15,845
44,732 51,223 42,755 47,876
Total liabilities 59,382,538 9,475,980 59,454,782 9,572,463
Net assets 3,299,024 2,787,531 2,651,563 2,502,462
Equity
Share capital 25 81,000 81,000 81,000 81,000
Capital redemption reserve 9,138 9,138 9,138 9,138
Hedging and translation reserves 26 (104,826) (110,006) 686 435
Other reserves 295,371 295,046 565,160 565,160
Retained earnings 3,018,341 2,512,353 1,995,579 1,846,729
Total equity 3,299,024 2,787,531 2,651,563 2,502,462

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue. Signed on behalf of the Board of
Directors on 25 May 2022 by:

S Billion

Chief Financial Officer

EDF Trading Limited
Registered number: 03750288

The accompanying notes from pages 24 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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EDF Trading Limited

Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity

As at 31 December 2021

Group Note

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive expense for
the period

Total comprehensive income
/{expense) for the period

Dividends paid 12
At 31 December 2020

Profit for the period

Equity reserves recycled through

P&L on disposal of subsidiary 26
Other comprehensive income for

the period '

Total comprehensive income for

the period

Dividends paid 12
At 31 December 2021

Other reserves includes unrealised profits generated
associate's other comprehensive income.

Company Note

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive expense for

the period

Total comprehensive income
/(expense) for the period

Dividends paid 12
At 31 December 2020

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income for

the period

Total comprehensive income for

the period

Dividends paid 12
At 31 December 2021

: Hedging and
Share Capital translation Other Retained
capital redemption reserves reserves earnings Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
81,000 9,138 (69,073) 296,009 2,673,820 2,990,894
- - - - 450,533 450,533
- - (40,933) (963) - (41,896)
- - (40,933) (963) 450,533 408,637
- - - - (612,000) (612,000)
81,000 9,138 (110,006) 295,046 2512353 2,787,531
- - - - 956,988 956,988
- - (1,324) - - (1,324)
- - 6,504 325 - 6,829
- - 5,180 325 956,988 962,493
- - - - (451,000) (451,000)
81,000 9,138 (104,826) 295,371 3,018,341 3,299,024

on the disposal of a subsidiary in 2012 and the Group's share of

Hedging and
Share Capital translation Other Retained
capital redemption reserves reserves earnings Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
81,000 9,138 2,558 565,160 2,005,360 2,663,216
- - - - 453,369 453,369
) ; (2,123) : - (2,123)
- - (2,123) - 453,369 451,246
- - - - (612,000) (612,000)
81,000 9,138 435 565,160 1,846,729 2,502,462
- - - - 599,850 599,850
- - 251 - - 251
- - 251 - 599,850 600,101
- - - - (451,000) (451,000)
81,000 9,138 686 565,160 1,995,579 2,651,563

Other reserves include unrealised profits generated on the disposal of a subsidiary in 2012.

The accompanying notes from pages 24 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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EDF Trading Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Operating activities

Profit before tax

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Impairment of tangible fixed assets

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Interest expense

(Gains)/losses on foreign currency exchange
Gains on disposal of Group entities

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Increase in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Decrease in net derivative financial assets/liabilities
Decrease in prepaid expenses

Decrease in other assets

Decrease in other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Interest and bank charges paid
Income taxes paid )
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities

Investing activities

(Issuance)/repayments of borrowings with associates

Dividends and capital reductions received from associates
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of associates

Realised (losses)/gains on net investment/cash flow hedges

Net cash (outflow) / inflow from investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from loan facilities

Repayments of borrowings and lease related payments
Dividends paid

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
Note €'000 €'000
758,765 505,837
13 3,291 3,342
14 4,645 9,661
14 - 1,007
7 - 2,702
9 19,737 17,072
7 (1,205) 233
7 (1,056) -
784,177 539,854
(337,573) (118,041)
(14,085,023) 327,996
11,283,464 (856,039)
188,284 752,668
1,876 2,502
5,114 5177
(2,619) (2,396)
(2,162,300) 651,721
(19,737) (17,072)
(97,384) (118,424)
_ (2,279,421) 516,225
(423,156) 2,759
298,995 26,327
13, 14 (6,599) (4,487)
8,869 7,353
(251) -
(1,551) 24,292
(123,693) 56,244
22 2,939,676 -
(5,394) (7,136)
12 (451,000) (612,000)
2,483,282 (619,136)
80,168 (46,667)
1,656,203 1,702,923
4,967 (53)
18 1,741,338 1,656,203

The accompanying notes from pages 24 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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EDF Trading Limited
Company Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
Note €000 €'000
Operating activities
Profit before tax 713,453 532,409
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 13 3,291 3,342
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 14 4,100 7,507
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets - 311
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (764) -
impaiment of investments in associates 16 156,914 73,433
Interest expense . 19,177 16,273
(Gains)/iosses on foreign currency exchange (1,130) 168
Income from subsidiaries (69,550) (47,605)
Income from associate (298,761) (20,031)
Non-recurring income from recognition of associate 16 - (12,365)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 526,730 553,442
Increase in inventories (294,942) (100,617)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (14,199,973) 210,502
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 11,345,057 (748,293)
Decrease in net derivative financial assets/liabilities 299,224 687,658
Decrease in prepaid expenses 1,556 2,841
Decrease in other assets 19,629 17,331
Decrease in other liabilities (2,619) (2,396)
Cash generated from operations (2,305,338) 620,468
Interest and bank charges paid (19,177) (16,273)
Income taxes paid (85,223) (105,338)
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities (2,409,738) 498,857
Investing activities
Issuance of borrowings to associate (425,717) -
Dividends received from subsidiary 69,550 47 605
Dividends and capital reduction received from associates 298,761 20,031
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 13, 14 (6,786) (4,199)
Realised (losses)/gains on cash flow hedges (3,455) 349
Net cash inflow from investing activities (67,647) 63,786
Financing activities
Proceeds from loan facilities 2,939,676 -
Repayments of borrowings and lease related payments 22 (2,554) (7,025)
Dividends paid 12 (451,000) (612,000)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities 2,486,122 (619,025)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,737 {56,382)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,602,631 1,659,167
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 2,762 (154)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 1,614,130 1,602,631

The accompanying notes from pages 24 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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EDF Trading Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

1 Company information

EDF Trading Limited (the "Company") is a private company incorporated and domiciled in England in the United Kingdom
under the Companies Act 2006. The registered number is 03750288 and the address of the registered office is 80 Victoria
Street, 3rd Floor, Cardinat Place, London, SW1E 5JL.

These financial statements are presented in euros because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2.

2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 ("UK-adopted IFRS"). The principal
accounting policies adopted are set out below and within relevant notes to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial instruments and inventories
which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Control is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect those returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it considers that it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

- the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders'
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used
into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between the members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), less liabilities of the subsidiary. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRS).

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are initially measured at cost and subsequently carried at cost less provisions for
impairment. Investments are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts of the investment may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of the
investment exceeds the higher of net realisable value and the discounted future earnings from the investment. Further
details pertaining to the accounting of subsidiary undertakings is included above at Basis for consolidation.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of
accounting under which an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the total comprehensive income and equity movements of equity
accounted investees, from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of the Group's investments in associates for impairment at the end of each reporting
period. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intergroup balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses, arising from intragroup transactions, are
eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted associates are eliminated against the investment to
the extent of the Group's interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Translation of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated from their respective functional currencies into the Group's
presentation currency using the year-end exchange rates, and their income and expenses using the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of
transactions are used. Cumulative unrealised gains or losses resulting from translation of functional currencies to the presentation
currency are included as a separate component of shareholders' equity. To the extent that these gains and losses are effectively
hedged, the cumulative effect of such gains and losses arising on the hedging instruments are also included in that component of
shareholders' equity. Upon the disposal of subsidiaries the cumulative amount of exchange differences deferred in shareholders’
equity, net of attributable amounts in relation to hedged net investments, is recognised in profit or loss. On the disposal of a
foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the accumulated exchange differences in
respect of that operation attributable to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of these assets is approximately equal to their fair value.

The Company participates in a cash management program with Electricité de France, whereby the Company agrees to pool
surplus liquidity with Electricité de France. The purpose of the cash pooling arrangement is to allow for the optimal management
of credit and investment of cash surpluses between the Company and Electricité de France.

Going concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are
set out in the Strategic Report and Directors Report. In the opinion of the directors, the Company has sufficient liquidity and
financial resources to cope with current environment as well as continue in operation for at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements and therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Going concern (continued)

The directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial
statements which indicate that, taking account of reasonably plausible downsides, the company will have sufficient funds to
meet its liabilities as they fall due for that period.

As part of this, the directors are closely monitoring the energy market volatility that has developed through 2021 and up to the
date of these financial statements. The resulting elevated price environment has inflated market and liquidity risk in particular.
The liquidity pressure is driven principally by increased exchange and bilateral margining requirements. The directors have
further reviewed liquidity stress testing prepared by the company, including an extreme downside scenario which incorporates
the downgrading of EDF/EDFT's ratings below investment grade, counterpart defaults, unavailability of credit facilities from
financial institutions, and future capital and margining requirements. The directors concluded that the facilities in place with EDF
SA, which are expected to be renewed or extended as required, for a period of at least 12 months from the approval of these
financial statements, are sufficient in these stress scenarios. They have also considered EDF SA's ability to provide this
additional support and given the extensive liquidity available to the wider EDF Group as a whole, this is not considered a risk for
the period in question. Based on the assessment performed, the forecasts indicate the Company remains in a sufficiently liquid
financial position and therefore the directors consider the Company itself has considerable financial resources to continue its
operations.

Consequently, the directors are confident that the Group and Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities
as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and therefore have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Trading Margin

Net trading income represents the consolidated value of all transactions realised and unrealised as at period end attributable to
the purchase and sale of energy products in the wholesale market and related activities. To define trading income, the Group
uses the net gains and losses generated from financial instruments classified as held for trading per IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments ("IFRS 9") as the basis for this categorisation.

Net trading income is attributable to the Group's principal activity.

Trade Receivables and Payables

Based on a review of business model, the accounts receivable are classified at fair value through profit and loss as the
management of the Group's core activities is conducted on a fair value basis. Alongside the business model assessment of
financial assets, the Group considers trade payables to meet the definition of "held for trading" as they form part of a portfolio of
financial instruments that are managed on a fair value basis.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment
in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial
position of each group company are expressed in euros, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation
currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on
transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the financial information related to investments is converted to
the Group's reporting currency as described in Translation of foreign operations .

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make judgements and estimates that
affect reported assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, gains, losses and disclosure of contingencies. These judgements are
subject to change based on experience and new information. The financial statement areas that require significant judgements
are as follows:
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Judgements and estimates (continued)

Fair value measurement

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. Fair value of these financial instruments is calculated as an estimate
which uses market observable inputs but in some cases uses non-market observable inputs. There is further judgement applied in
calculating the dynamic reserve for Level 3 models. The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised immediately in
profit or loss. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship. For fair value hedge relationships, gains or losses on the derivatives (being the hedging
instruments) continue to be recognised in the P&L in the period in which they occur. For cash flow and net investment hedges, the
effective portion of gains or losses on the derivatives are initially posted to OCI and presented within equity, while the ineffective
portion is immediately posted to the P&L. The change in the fair value of the derivatives that is recognised in OCI is subsequently
reclassified to the P&L when the hedged item affects the P&L.

All derivative financial instruments are valued using a discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated based on forward
rates (from observable rates at the end of the reporting period) and contract forward rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of the counterparties. Similar vatuation methodologies are used for commodity forward contracts, foreign currency
forward contracts, cross currency swaps and interest rate swaps. Further detail is contained in note 23.

Asset Impairments and Reversals

Management applies judgement in assessing the existence of impairment and impairment reversal indicators based on various
internal and external factors. The recoverable amount of CGUs (cash-generating units) and individual assets is determined based
on the higher of fair value less costs to sell or value-in-use calculations.

The key estimates the company applies in determining the recoverable amount normally include estimated future charter rates (for
vessels), commoadity prices, interest rates, foreign currency rates, discount rates and tax rates. Changes to these estimates and
judgements will affect the recoverable amount of individual assets and may then require a material adjustment to their related
carrying value. '

Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised when it is considered probable that deductible temporary differences will be recovered in the
foreseeable future. To the extent that future taxable income and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction differ
significantly from the company's estimate, the ability of the company to realise the deferred tax assets could be impacted. The key
estimate is the forecast of future taxable profits in each relevant jurisdiction.

Leases

When the Group enters a contract which contains a lease of an asset, the Group assesses if the contract involves use of an
identified asset, whether the Group has the right to obtain all of the economic benefits from use of the asset, and if it has the right
to direct the use of the asset. If these criteria are met, then the Group recognises a lease liability and a Right of Use asset. The
lease liability is measured as a discounted present value of future cash flows under the lease, and it will increase as a result of
interest charges to be accrued during the term of the lease. The lease liability will be reduced by actual [ease payments.

The Right of Use asset is depreciated'over the life time of the lease on a straight line basis.
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Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards

There were no changes to applicable financial reporting standards or accounting policies relevant to these financial
statements.

The following Adopted IFRSs have been issued but have not been applied in these financial statements. Their adoption is not
expected to have a material effect on the financial statements unless otherwise indicated:

.

-

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (effective 1 January 2022).

Amendments to IAS 37: Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (effective 1 January 2022).

Amendments to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use (effective 1 January 2022).
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3 (effective 1 January 2022).

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (effective 1 January 2023).

Amendments to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use (effective date to be confirmed).

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates (effective date to be confirmed).

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statements 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (effective date to be confirmed).

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes ~ Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction
(effective date to be confirmed).

4 Profit for the year
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: Group
Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
Note €000 . €000
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses 7 (1,205) 233
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 4,645 9,661
Amortisation of intangible asset 13 3,291 3,342
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 14 - 1,007
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 - 2,702
Gain on disposal of Group entity 7 (1,056) -
Staff costs 6 136,840 113,968
5 Auditor’'s remuneration
Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
€000 €'000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company and
consolidated annual accounts, and audit related assurance services 1,051 931
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and their associates for other services to the Group
- The audit of the Company'’s subsidiaries 63 62
Total audit fees 1,114 9393
- Taxation compliance, other taxation services and other assurance services 29 29
Total non-audit fees 29 29
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6 Staff costs

The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) was:

Group employees

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

Group
2021 2020
Number Number
489 471
Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
€000 €’000
115,642 96,098
16,999 14,111
4,199 3,759
136,840 113,968

The Group operates a defined contribution group personal pension scheme available to its employees. Contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they become payable in accordance with the rutes of the scheme.
Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or
prepayments in the balance sheet. The amount recognised as an expense for defined contribution plans in 2021 was

€4,199k (2020: €3,759K).

Remuneration of directors and key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company, is set out below in aggregate
for each of the relevant categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. The amounts disclosed below represent
those in relation to the directors who received remuneration in respect of services to the Company along with a pro-forma
allocation relating to the other members of the Board in relation to the services provided as part of their role as directors.

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind

Remuneration disclosed above includes the following amounts paid to the highest paid director:

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind
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7 Other gains and losses Group
Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
€'000 €'000
Net gain on disposal of Group entities 1,056 -
Loss on disposal of assets - (2,702)
Gain/(loss) on foreign currency exchange 1,205 (233)
2,261 (2,935)

During 2021 the Company disposed of its entire investment in both the former subsidiary Cardinal Shipping Limited and the
former joint operation Westminster Shipping Limited. The above net gain on disposal of Group entities represented the difference
between fair value of the consideration received, net value of derecognised assets and liabilities, and the value of equity reserves

recycled through the profit and loss account on the sale of these entities.

8 Investment revenue

Group
Year Year
ended ended

2021 2020

€000 €000
Bank deposits 3 30
Interest received on margin calls and collateral 1,179 873
Credit facility and similar fees paid by EDF Group companies 7,263 7,138
Change in fair value of a credit derivative (refer note 23) - 1,058
Total investment revenue 8,445 9,099
9 Finance costs

Group
Year Year
ended ended

2021 2020

€'000 €'000
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 823 511
Interest charged by EDF Group companies 6,986 8,046
Bank charges and other 6,062 4,216
Interest paid on margin calls and collateral 4,530 2,962
Interest expense accrued on lease liabilitities 1,211 1,337
Change in fair value of a credit derivative (refer note 23) 125 -
Total finance costs 19,737 17,072

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

10 Parent company profit and loss

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the income statement of the parent company is not presented as part of

these financial statements. The parent company's profit for the financial year amounted to €599,850k (2020: €453,369k).
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11 Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Group

Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
€'000 €'000
Corporation tax:
Current year charge . (157,159) (102,533)
Adjustments in respect of prior years (3,459) 328
(160,618) (102,205)
Deferred tax:
Current year charge 1,653 2,842
Adjustments in respect of prior years 1,182 2,536
2,835 5,378
(157,783) (86,827)

Corporation tax is calculated at 19% (2020: 19%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year.

On 10 July 2021, the Finance Act 2021 received Royal Assent enacting the UK corporation tax rate would increase to 25% from
1 April 2023 onward instead of remaining at 19%, the previously enacted rate. Deferred tax has been calculated on this basis.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the income statement as follows:

Group
Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
€'000 €'000
Profit for the year . 956,088 450,533
Excluding share of profit of associates for the year (356,006) (41,523)
Adding back taxation charges 157,783 96,827
Profit before taxation 758,765 505,837
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2020: 19%) (144,165) (96,109)
Prior year adjustment (2,277) 2,864
Tax effect of expenses/income that are not deductible/taxable in determining taxable profit (2,900) 1,861
Gain on disposal of investment (145) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions (13,357) (7,217)
Effect of change in tax rate 4915 1,774
Unrecognised deferred tax 146 -
Hedging amounts taken to reserves - -
Tax expense for the year (157,783) (96,827)
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Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been recognised in other
comprehensive income:

Group
Year Year
Ended Ended
2021 2020
Deferred tax: €'000 €'000
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Gains on cash flow hedges (135) 480
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (135) 480
12 Dividends
Company
Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
€'000 €'000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period: )
Total dividend . 451,000 612,000
Dividend per share (in €) 5.57 7.56
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Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group verifies whether its previous assumptions about useful economic life, residual
value and amortisation methods of its tangible and intangible assets are still adequate. The Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible (see note 14) and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent
from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adijusted. :

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Market
access

Group and Company : rights Software Total

€'000 €'000 €'000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 15,000 - 15,000
Additions - - -
At 31 December 2020 15,000 - 15,000
Reclassification from Property, Plant and Equipment - 20,910 20,910
Additions - 4,840 4,840
At 31 December 2021 15,000 25,750 40,750
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2020 (11,658) - (11,658)
Charge for the year (3,342) - (3,342)
At 31 December 2020 ' (15,000) - (15,000)
Reclassification from Property, Plant and Equipment - (14,517) (14,517)
Charge for the year - - (3,291) (3,291)
At 31 December 2021 (15,000) (17,808) (32,808)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 - 7,942 7,942
At 31 December 2020 - - -
At 1 January 2020 3,342 - 3,342

The Company holds an intangible asset arising from its exclusive market access agreement with a fellow EDF Group
entity. The asset has been amortised over the estimated useful life of 3 years from the purchase date. Software has been
reclassified from property, plant and equipment (see note 14) to intangible assets to more accurately reflect the nature of
the underlying assets. Capitalised development costs are not treated as a realised loss for the purpose of determining the
Company’s distributable profits as the costs meet the conditions requiring them to be treated as an asset in accordance
with IAS 38.

33 of 65



EDF Trading Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

14 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land and assets under construction are not depreciated. Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets (other than freehold land and assets under
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following basis:

Computer equipment 3 years
Furniture and fittings 4 years
Communication equipment 4 years
Land, buildings and leasehold improvements 4 years
Right of Use assets Relevant lease term
Vessels 10-15 years.

Vessels are stated at cost and depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual
values, using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or scrappage of an asset is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in income.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment are assessed as detailed in note 13 and included in the other operating
expenses line in profit or loss.

No borrowing costs incurred in 2020 or 2021 were directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
tangible assets for either the Group or Company and hence all borrowing costs were expensed as incurred.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated over their useful lives determined individually based on the terms of the lease
agreement.
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14 Property, plant and equipment (coritinued)

Group

Cost
At 1 January 2020

Additions
Disposals
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2020

Reclassification to Intangibles
Additions

Disposals

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
At 1 January 2020

Charge for the year
Impairment charge
Disposals

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2020

Reclassification to Intangibles
Charge for the year
Disposals

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2021

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2020

Impairment losses and reversals recognised in the prior year

Computer
and
communi-
. cation Furniture Land and Right of Use
equipment  and fittings buildings assets Vessels Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
48,557 5,522 12,480 43,291 79,305 189,155
3,993 337 157 115 - 4,602
= - - (13,512) (34,992) (48,504)
- - - - (4,799) (4,799)
52,550 5,859 12,637 29,894 39,514 140,454
(20,910) - - - - (20,910)
1,655 1 103 - - 1,759
- - - - (42,466) (42,466)
- - - - 2,952 2,952
33,295 5,860 12,740 29,894 - 81,789
(37,902) (5,318) (12,150) (10,024) (56,653) (122,047)
(5,002) (155) (320) (2,347) (1,837) (9,661)
- - - - (1,007) (1,007)
- - - 7,570 24,937 32,507
- N - - 3,631 3,631
(42,904) (5,473) (12,470) (4,801) (30,929) (96,577)
14,517 - - - - 14,517
(1,760) (149) (59) (2,403) (274) (4,645)
- - - - 33,597 33,697
- - - - (2,394) (2,394)
(30,147) (5,622) (12,529) (7,204) - (55,502)
3,148 238 21 22,690 - 26,287
9,646 386 167 25,093 8,585 43,877
10,655 204 330 33,267 22,652 67,108

Valuations of the vessels are classified as Level 3 in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy. The impairment in 2020 related

to the vessel Cape Amanda, based on fair value less cost to sell.

Sensitivity analysis

The vessel Cape Amanda was disposed of during the year (2020 saw the disposal of Cape Agnes) therefore no further
sensitivity analysis has been carried out over the valuation of the vessels previously held. .
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Computer and

communication Furniture and Right of Use Leasehold

equipment fittings assets improvements Total
Company €'000 €'000 €'000 €000 €'000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 46,740 4,873 42,490 11,965 106,068
Additions 3,706 337 - 156 4,199
Disposals - - (13,512) - (13,512)
At 31 December 2020 50,446 5,210 28,978 12,121 96,755
Reclassification to Intangibles (20,910) - - - (20,910)
Transfer from subsidiary 244 - - - 244
Additions 1,598 1 - 103 1,702
At 31 December 2021 31,378 5,211 28,978 12,224 77,791
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020 (36,250) (4,763) (9,864) (11,652) (62,529)
Charge for the year (4,887) (141) (2,164) (315) (7,507)
Disposals - - 7,570 - 7,570
At 31 December 2020 (41,137) (4,904) (4,458) (11,967) (62,466)
Reclassification to Intangibles 14,517 - - - 14,517
Charge for the year " (1,683) (135) (2,229) (53) (4,100)
At 31 December 2021 (28,303) (5,039) (6,687) (12,020) (52,049)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 3,075 172 22,291 204 25,742
At 31 December 2020 9,309 306 24,520 154 34,289
At 1 January 2020 10,490 110 32,626 313 43,539
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15 Investment in subsidiaries

The Group consists of a parent company, EDF Trading Limited, incorporated in the UK and a number of subsidiaries and
associates held directly and indirectly by EDF Trading Limited, which operate and are incorporated around the world.

Information about the composition of the Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Proportion of ownership

Share interest / voting rights
Name of subsidiary Principal activity Place of incorporation class held by the Group
At 31 At 31
December  December
2021 2020
Cardinal Shipping Limited Vessel ownership 80 Victoria Street, Cardinal Ordinary 0% 100%
Place, London, SW1E 5JL
United Kingdom
EDF Trading (Switzerland) Power trading Entfelderstrasse 5, Ordinary 100% 100%
AG 5000 Aarau, Switzerland
EDF Trading Bioenergy Holding company 80 Victoria Street, Cardinal Ordinary 100% 100%
Limited Place, London, SW1E 5JL
United Kingdom
EDF Trading Markets Arranger on behalf 9 Clanwilliam Terrace, Dublin, Ordinary 100% 100%
(Ireland) Limited of the Company freland
EDF Trading Electricidady  Marketeer on behalf 17 Ronda Sant Pere, Ordinary 100% 100%
Gas, S.L. of the Company Barcelona, Spain
EDF Trading Markets Arranger on behalf 80 Victoria Street, Cardinal Ordinary 100% 100%
Limited of the Company Place, London, SW1E 5JL
United Kingdom )
EDF Trading Singapore Marketeer on behalf ~ 37-61, Tower 2, One Raffles Ordinary 100% 100%
Pte. Limited of the Company Place, Singapore
EDF Trading Japan KK Power trading 14F 3-1-1 Tokyo Square Ordinary 100% 100%

Garden, Kyobashi, Chuo-ku,
Tokyo, Japan

The nature of the activities of all EDF Trading Limited's associates is trading in commodities and the associated logistical
operations, which are seen as complementing the Group's operations and contributing to achieving the Group's overall strategy.

Movements in investments in subsidiaries for the Company:

Balance at 1 January
Additions
Disposals during the year

Company
2021 2020
€'000 €'000
41,783 41,783
2,347 -
(4] -
44,129 41,783

During 2021 the Company disposed of its entire investment in the former subsidiary Cardinal Shipping Limited. All assets and -
liabilities held by the former subsidiary were derecognised from the Group's statement of financial position. The gain on the
disposal was recognised within Other gains and losses, as disclosed in note 7.

16 Investment in associates, joint operations and joint ventures

Details of material joint operations

Proportion of ownership

Share interest / voting rights
Name of joint operation Principal activity Place of incorporation class held by the Group
At 31 At 31
December  December
2021 2020
Westminster Shipping Vessel ownership 80 Victoria Street, Cardinal Ordinary 0% 50%
Limited Place, London, SW1E 5JL

United Kingdom
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16 Investment in associates, joint operations and joint ventures (continued)

Westminster Shipping Limited was jointly controlled by the Company and Mitsubishi Corporation, an entity incorporated in Japan.
The Group's share of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses was incorporated into these accounts on the line by line basis up
to the date of disposal.

During 2021 the Company disposed of its entire investment in the former joint operation Westminster Shipping Limited. All
assets and liabilities held by the former joint operation were derecognised from the Group's statement of financial position. The
loss on the disposal was recognised in Other gains and losses, as disclosed in note 7 within the net gain on disposal of group
entities.

Details of material associates and joint ventures

Details of each of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Proportion of
ownership interest /
voting rights held by

Name of associate / joint venture Principal activity Place of incorporation the Group
At 31 At 31
December December
2021 2020
ENAG Energiefinanzierungs A.G. * Power trading gﬁg;zr:dslrasse, Ibach, 29.4% 29.4%
5404 Wisconsin Av,
EDF inc. ** Holding company Chevy Chase, MD, United 17.5% 17.5%
States
37-61, Tower 2, One
JERA Global Markets Pte Coal and LNG trading Raffles Place, Singapore 33.3% 33.3%
GETEC Sales & Trading GmbH Power trading 30158, Hannover An der 25.3% 0.0%

Borse 4, Germany

For all associates and joint ventures shown above, the ownership interest is held through Ordinary shares or local equivalents.
The associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements, as set out in the Group’s
accounting policies as per note 2.

* Significant influence is exercised over ENAG whereby all partners have Board representations. During 2020 the share of
ownership increased to 29.4%, as detailed on the following page, this increase in shareholding does not impact on the
classification as an associate.

** Significant influence is exercised over EDF Inc., through Board representation, and EDF S.A. owns the remaining
shareholdings.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s material associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below is on a 100% basis and represents amounts in associates’ financial statements.

ENAG
JERA GM Pte EDF Inc. Energiefinanzierungs

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Ownership percentage 33.3% 33.3% 17.5% 17.5% 29.4% 29.4%
Net assets 2,266,067 1,319,751 3,083,006 3,979,675 51,135 57,286
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2,266,067 1,319,751 3,083,006 3,979,675 51,135 57,286
Total comprehensive income 1,067,182 339,001 111,415 (652,374) 325 376
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16 Investment in associates, joint operations and joint ventures (continued)

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in associates:

At 1 January
Additions
Capital redemption
Share of retained profits
Share of movements in reserves
Profit distribution and capital reductions
FX variances

At 31 December

Carrying amount of the Company’s interest in associates and joint operations:

At 1 January
Additions
Impairment
Disposals

At 31 December

Total
2021 2020
€'000 €'000
1,140,981 1,240,528
251 12,365
- (13,567)
356,006 29,140
325 (963)
(298,995) (13,962)
97,296 (112,560)
1,295,864 1,140,981
Total
2021 2020
€'000 €'000
907,484 968,552
251 12,365
(156,914) (73,433)
(1) -
750,820

907,484

Company interest in associates are held at cost less impairment. During 2021 and 2020 these were impaired in line with the

underlying net assets within the associates.

17 Inventories -

Inventory represents commodities held for trading purposes ‘and are held at fair value (being Level 2 in the IFRS 13 fair value

hierarchy). Movements in the fair value of inventory are recognised in profit or loss. .
Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

€'000 €'000 €'000 €000

Carbon Emission Credits ' 204,255 62,959 204,255 62,959
Gas Inventories 295,625 99,348 235,570 81,924
499 880 -162,307 439,825 144,883
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18 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Cash 254,093 79,543 126,885 25,971
Cash pool agreements 1,487,245 1,576,660 1,487,245 1,576,660
Cash and cash equivalents 1,741,338 1,656,203 1,614,130 1,602,631

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of these assets is approximately equal to their fair value. Cash
and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows can be
reconciled to the related items in the consolidated balance sheet position as shown above.

The Company participates in a cash management program with Electricité de France, whereby the Company agrees to
pool surplus liquidity with Electricité de France. The purpose of the cash pooling arrangement is to allow for the optimal
management of credit and investment of cash surpluses between the Company and Electricité de France. The terms of
the agreement are similar to a typical bank account in that the Company retains control of the funds and the centralising
company (Electricité de France) shall not interfere with the Company's payment instructions and is responsible for
ensuring that the funds are available as and when required by the Company. The Company earns interest on funds held
in the cash pool at market rates.

19 Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Third party trade receivables 3,982,663 1,126,696 3,816,522 994,979
Amounts receivable from EDF Group companies 2,988,270 767,940 2,785,707 694,130
Amounts receivable from EDFT Group companies - - 590,476 300,837
Margin assets and receivables 9,499,601 553,558 9,492,934 553,509
Other third party receivables 149,525 75,174 138,280 68,823
Total current trade and other receivables 16,620,059 2,623,368 16,823,919 2,612,278
Non-current trade and other receivables 162,635 174,303 162,635 174,303

The Group utilises collateral and margining accounts to minimise counterparty credit risk. Within trade and other
receivables is €9,500m (2020: €554m) of collateral and bilateral margin.

Within the margin assets and receivables disclosed above, €5,990m was collateral under bilateral margin agreements.
The remaining €3,510m represents initial margin posted to clearing managers to facilitate trading on exchange.

The third party recoverability risk noted above has been further mitigated by letter of credit arrangements which are not
recognised on the balance sheet. The value of the letters of credit in place from counterparties at the year end was
€529m (2020: €286m). Both cash and letters of credit are eligible forms of collateral as prescribed by the credit support
annexes to the underlying trading contracts.

All trade receivables are measured at fair value through profit and loss, classified at Level 2 in the IFRS 13 fair value
hierarchy.

The total third party trade receivables overdue at the end of the year, gross of the credit valuation adjustment, was as
follows:

Group
2021 2020
€'000 €'000
Less than 30 days 20,288 3,571
Between 31 and 90 days 2,468 15
More than 90 days - 232
Total 22,756 3,818
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20 Trade and other payables

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

€'000 €000 €'000 €000
Third party trade payables 5,996,294 1,282,008 5,831,390 1,160,265
Amount owed to EDFT Group companies ' - - 410,068 245,592
Amount owed to EDF Group companies 2,260,968 1,180,210 2,200,054 1,179,025
Accruals and other payables 52,074 25,251 50,844 24,510
Margin liabilities 5,579,564 148,073 5,579,564 148,073
Employee liabilities 160,862 129,282 156,949 126,032
Total current trade and other payables 14,049,862 2,764,824 14,228,869 2,883,497
Non-current trade and other payables 5,369 6,943 3,773 4,088

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The
average credit period taken for trade purchases is 30 days. Trade payables are measured at fair value through profit
and loss, and they are included in Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The majority of trade and other payables are all
due to be settled within one month of the year end. The maturity of all non-current third party trade and other payables
is between 2 and 5 years.

21 Loans and receivables

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Loans to ENAG Energiefinanzierungs A.G. 7,855 10,408 - -
Loans to JERA GM 425,717 - 425717 -
Season ticket loans 5 13 5 13
433,577 10,421 425,722 13

The loan to ENAG is interest free and is repayable on demand. The loan to JERA GM relates to a Debt Facility
Agreement provided by the shareholders in proportion to the investment, this facility is repayable on demand and
incurs interest at a variable interest rate linked to USD LIBOR. Advances related to staff's season ticket loans are
current and interest free. :

The company monitors each loan individually in the context of identifiable risks to the future performance of the loan.
The analysis (at each reporting date) of the risk of default is "case by case", taking into account counterparty credit
rating, country, regulatory risk and any other relevant factors. The company would consider that credit risk increases
when contractual payments are more than 60 days past due. All loans and receivables are measured at fair value
through profit and loss, and they are included in Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

22 Borrowings

Group Company
2021 20620 2021 2020
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Lease liabilities 28,200 30,882 27,792 30,345
Bank and shareholder loans 2,939,676 2,710 2,939,676 -
2,967,876 33,592 2,967,468 30,345

The shareholder loans are repayable during 2022 with interest payable at fixed rates in a range between 0.75% and
1.25%.
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22 Borrowings (continued)

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
€'000 €'000 €'000 €000
Within 1 year 2,939,676 2,710 2,939,676 -
2-5 years ) - - - -
Over 5 years - - - -
Total 2,939,676 2,710 2,939,676 . -

The maturity profile of lease liabilities is analysed in the note 27 Commitments and contingencies .
23 Derivative financial instruments

Forward commodity contracts and derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments for trading purposes, such as futures, swaps, options, and forward
contracts which are physically settled instruments for delivery in the future. The Group does not classify any of these contracts
as “own-use”.

Derivative financial instruments are measured by reference to market prices at the year-end. Changes in the assets and
liabilities from these activities arising in the current period (resulting primarily from newly originated transactions, settlements
and the impact of price movements on existing transactions) are recognised in Trading Income in Profit or Loss account unless
the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument. If this is the case, the timing of the recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Refer to Directors' Report for detailed information on the Group's financial risk management, including Market Risk, Capital Risk
and Credit Risk.

Derivative financial assets

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Energy commodity contracts 41,441,440 6,158,520 41,419,903 6,154,889
Forward foreign exchange contracts 387,594 322,946 330,493 322,877
Interest rate swaps 1,860 2,765 1,860 2,765
41,830,894 6,484,231 41,752,256 6,480,531
Derivative financial liabilities
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Energy commodity contracts 41,416,843 6,294,095 41,824,779 6,279,041
Forward foreign exchange contracts 817,779 294,055 336,670 294,055
interest rate swaps 29,008 46,923 29,008 46,923
Credit derivatives 364 239 364 239
42,263,994 6,635,312 42,190,821 6,620,258

Credit derivatives

Credit derivatives include company guarantees issued by the Company to trading counterparts of EDF Trading North America
LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of a 17.5% associate of the Group, in order to support its commercial development in the USA
in the normal course of business. As the underlying contract to which the guarantees relate is not a debt instrument but a
commodity contract, the guarantees do not meet the definition of a financial guarantee contract under IFRS, therefore the
guarantees are accounted for as a credit derivative.

Credit derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss. At inception, 17.5% of the credit derivative was recognised
as a capital contribution, with the remaining balance being taken to the Income Statement. In EDF Trading North America LLC'’s
accounts the underlying trades that are supported by these company guarantees are marked to market derivatives.
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The fair value of the company guarantees is calculated by applying the credit spread between the Company and EDF Trading
North America LLC to the capped liability, which is the lower of the fair value of the underlying trading positions guaranteed and
the notional value of the company guarantee. As at 31 December 2021 the capped liability was €274m (2020: €199m), resulting in
the recognition of a credit derivative on the balance sheet of €0.4m (2020: €0.2m).

Fair value measurements

The information below explains how the Group determines fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities. The
following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

-Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active exchange markets for identical
assets or liabilities. Level 1 instruments are primarily exchange traded oil derivatives;

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). These inputs include quoted forward prices for
commodities, time value, contractual prices and expected volumes of the underlying instruments. Level 2 instruments are primarily
non-exchange traded derivatives such as forward commodity contracts;

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability, which
are not based on observable market data. These unobservable inputs include assumptions based on historical data, including
cross commodity and time spread correlations. These inputs are used with pricing models based on industry standards, tailored to
EDFT products, which result in management's best estimate of fair value on a NPV basis. Level 3 instruments are typically
structured or individually tailored derivatives.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position

2021
Group Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Financial assets at FVTPL
Energy commodity contracts - 37,927,140 3,514,300 41,441,440
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 387,594 - 387,594
Interest rate swaps - 1,860 - 1,860
Total - 38,316,594 3,514,300 41,830,894
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Energy commodity contracts - ' 40,610,995 805,848 41,416,843
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 817,779 - 817,779
Interest rate swaps - 29,008 - 29,008
Credit derivatives - - 364 364
Total - 41,457 782 806,212 42,263,994
2020
Group . Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Financial assets at FVTPL
Energy commodity contracts 262,969 5,092,106 803,445 6,158,520
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 322,946 - 322,946
Interest rate swaps - 2,765 - 2,765
Total 262,969 5,417,817 803,445 6,484,231
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Energy commodity contracts 268,758 5,885,021 140,316 6,294,095
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 294,055 - 294,055
Interest rate swaps - 46,923 - 46,923
Credit derivatives . - - 239 239
Total 268,758 6,225,999 140,555 6,635,312
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Company

Financial assets at FVTPL
Energy commodity contracts
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate swaps

Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Energy commodity contracts
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate swaps
Credit derivatives

Total

Company

Financial assets at FVTPL
Energy commodity contracts
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate swaps

Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Energy commodity contracts

Forward foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate swaps
Credit derivatives

Total

2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
- 37,986,075 3,433,828 41,419,903
- 330,493 - 330,493
- 1,860 - 1,860
- 38,318,428 3,433,828 41,752,256
- 41,018,931 805,848 41,824,779
- 336,670 - 336,670
- 29,008 - 29,008
- - 364 364
- 41,384,609 806,212 42,190,821
2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
262,814 5,117,714 774,361 6,154,889
- 322,877 - 322,877
- 2,765 - 2,765
262,814 5,443,356 774,361 6,480,531
268,115 5,870,610 140,316 6,279,041
- 294,055 - 294,055
- 46,923 - 46,923
- - 239 239
268,115 6,211,588 140,555 6,620,258

Schedule of movements in the level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

All derivatives are valued in accordance with the techniques outlined in the fair value hierarchy disclosure above. There were no
significant transfers between levels of the hierarchy in the current or preceding year. The following table shows the reconciliation
of changes in the fair value of financial instruments classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

At 1 January 2020
New financial instruments
Matured financial instruments

Movements in fair value of existing financial instruments

At 31 December 2020

New financiat instruments
Matured financial instruments

Movements in fair value of existing financial instruments

At 31 December 2021
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Group Company
€'000 €'000
473,723 473,723
406,904 401,849
(189,803) (189,803)
(27,934) (51,963)
662,890 633,806
1,793,736 1,793,736
(466,797) (461,743)
718,259 661,816
2,708,088 2,627,615




EDF Trading Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

23 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following table shows the valuation techniques used for Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant
unobservable inputs used for Level 3 financial instruments.

Valuation instruments at FV Valuation technique

Energy commodity contracts Derivatives are recorded at fair value, which is based on EDFT's commercial view of
market levels. These may include reference to external sources or recent comparable
transactions.

Forward foreign exchange contracts  Forward foreign exchange contracts are recorded at fair value, based on quoted priées
and market data available from external sources.

Interest rate swaps Interest rate swaps are recorded at fair value, based on quoted prices and market data
available from external sources.

Credit derivatives Not applicable

Valuation instruments at FV Significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Energy commodity contracts Uncbservable inputs, such as cross-commodity correlations, time-spread correlations

and forward volatilities are based on internal models taken on a deal by deal basis.

Forward foreign exchange contracts  Not applicable

Interest rate swaps Not applicable
Credit derivatives Credit spread
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and forward commodity contracts.

The Group monitors concentrations of credit risk by geographic location. An analysis of credit risk concentrations for Trade and
other receivables, Derivative financial assets and Loans and receivables is shown below.

Group Trade and other Derivative financial Loans and receivables
receivables assets
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Carrying amount 16,782,694 2,697,671 41,830,804 6,484,231 433,577 10,421

Concentration by location

Europe 15,179,291 1,348,120 38,484,637 5,944,608 7,860 10,421
North America ' 1,082,013 655,359 22,959 2,382 - -
Asia 309,717 503,454 3,319,446 536,056 425,717 -
Africa 78,698 67,934 - - - -
Other 132,975 122,804 3,852 1,185 - -
16,782,694 2,697,671 41,830,894 6,484,231 433,577 10,421
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Credit Risk (continued)
Company Trade and other Derivative financial Loans and receivables
receivables assets
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
€'000 €'000 €000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Carrying amount 16,986,554 2,786,581 41,752,256 6,480,531 425,722 13
Concentration by location
Europe 15,383,151 1,437,030 38,405,999 5,940,908 5 13
North America 1,082,013 655,359 22,959 2,382 - -
Asia 309,717 503,454 3,319,446 536,056 425,717 -
Africa 78,698 67,934 - - - -
Other 132,975 122,804 3,852 1,185 - -
16,986,554 2,786,581 41,752,256 6,480,531 425,722 13

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including the replacement of some
interbank offered rates (IBORs) with alternative nearly risk-free rates (referred to as 'IBOR reform’). The Group has exposures to
IBORs on financial instruments that will be replaced or reformed as part of these market-wide initiatives. During 2021 instruments

linked to GBP were transitioned to risk free rates with no material impact. Ahead of the transition of USD LIBOR in 2023 it is .

expected that these instruments will be amended throughout 2022. The Group anticipates that IBOR reform will not directly
impact hedge accounting as the reforms are expected to only impact unhedged instruments. The risks around the reform and any
changes to the IBORs are being reviewed and managed with regards to the applicable interest rate swaps and margin rate
agreements that they are expected to impact.

Foreign exchange risk

The Euro is the functional. currency of the Company and the presentation currency of the Group. The functional currency of
subsidiary undertakings is that which is most appropriate for the principal trading activity. The Group also transacts in other
currencies, principally British pound (UK power and gas) and US dollars (other commodities). When currency exposure arises as
a result of purchase and sale commitments in foreign currency, forward foreign exchange transactions are used to hedge the
exposure.

Interest rate risk

The Group also monitors its interest rate risk, considering any material exposures. interest rate swaps and futures are used to
manage the interest rate risk arising from medium-term trading positions and long-term structured transactions. Impacts from
'IBOR reform' have been detailed within Market Risk above and cover Interest rate risk as well.

46 of 55



EDF Trading Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

23 Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Movements in the deferred day one gains or losses reserve

The impact on the fair value of instruments classified as Level 3.of varying the unobservable parameters as at 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020 is immaterial.

Where an instrument extends beyond the limit of observable data (the liquidity horizon), the difference between the transaction
price and model value (known as "day one" gain or loss) is only recognised in comprehensive income when all the inputs become
observable, or the instrument is derecognised. The deferral is unwound over the life of the contract as it gets closer to expiration.
The following table shows the reconciliation of changes in the deferred day one gains or losses.

Group Company

€'000 €'000
At 1 January 2020 17,815 17,815
New contracts 17,436 17,436
Contracts realised (14,222) (14,222)
At 31 December 2020 21,029 21,029
New contracts 34,893 34,893
Contracts realised (26,213) (26,213)
At 31 December 2021 29,708 29,709

Sensitivity Analysis
The following table shows the sensitivity of fair values to reasonably possible alternative assumptions as at 31 December 2021:

Reflected in profit or loss

Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable

change change change change

2021 2021 2020 2020

Market prices €000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Energy commodity contracts 6,800 (53,960) 36,500 (29,877)

The following methods and assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity analysis:

Market prices

EDFT performs stress testing on its portfolio. Stress testing analysis complements the Value at Risk reporting (see Directors'
Report), which does not cover extreme market moves (due to the 97.5% confidence interval). The sensitivity shift price is
obtained by multiplying the volatility, as calculated per the Value at Risk methodology, with the prevailing market price for each
product in the portfolio. This is then multiplied by six to depict an extreme price move.

Foreign Exchange rates

EDFT's policy is to hedge currency risk arising from holding monetary assets or liabilities, forward commitments and net
investments in foreign operations in currencies other than the euro. As such the Group's P&L would not be significantly impacted
by a movement in foreign exchange rates.

Interest rates

EDFT's policy is to hedge interest rate risk from forward cash flows. As such the Group's profit or loss would not be significantly
impacted by a movement in interest rates.
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Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group enters into master netting agreements with its counterparties to give the Group the right to net a counterparty's rights and
obligations under the agreement. In the statement of financial position, financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and
presented on a net basis where there is a legally enforceable right to offset and the intention to settle on a net basis. The following
table presents the gross and net amounts for balances which are presented on a net basis in the statement of financial position.

Gross Amounts ) Net
amounts offset amounts
Group €'000 €'000 €'000
_ 2021
Derivative financial assets 86,397,565 44,566,671 41,830,894
Derivative financial liabilities 86,830,665 44,566,671 42,263,994
Trade and other receivables 27,274,373 10,491,679 16,782,694
Trade and other payables 24,546,910 10,491,679 14,055,231
2020
Derivative financial assets 9,844,789 3,360,558 6,484,231
Derivative financial liabilities 9,895,870 3,360,558 6,635,312
Trade and other receivables 8,059,258 5,361,587 2,697,671
Trade and other payables 8,133,354 5,361,587 2,771,767
Gross Amounts Net
amounts offset amounts
Company ’ €'000 €'000 €'000
2021
Derivative financial assets : 86,318,927 44 566,671 41,752,256
Derivative financial liabilities 86,757,492 44,566,671 42,190,821
Trade and other receivables 27,504,728 10,518,174 16,986,554
Trade and other payables 24,750,816 10,518,174 14,232,642
2020
Derivative financial assets 9,841,088 3,360,558 6,480,531
Derivative financial liabilities 9,980,816 3,360,558 6,620,258
Trade and other receivables 8,144,023 5,357,442 2,786,581
Trade and other payables 8,245,027 5,357,442 2,887,585
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23 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting

The Group has adopted the hedge accounting model under IFRS 9. The Group maintains the hedge documentation compliant
with IFRS 9.

The Group designates certain hedging instruments as either cash flow hedges or hedges of net investments in foreign
operations.

At the inception of the hedge relationship the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instruments that are used in hedging
transactions are effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Cash flow hedges

The Group designates certain forward foreign exchange contracts as cash flow hedges of non euro expenditures.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised
in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, and
is included in the 'other gains / (losses)’ line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the
periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, in the same line of the income statement as the recognised hedged
item.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in Other comprehensive income; the gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Gains and losses directly recognised in reserves are recognised immediately in profit or loss when the hedged foreign operation
is disposed of.

Hedging contracts valuation at the balance sheet date

The fair value of derivative financial instrument contracts in designated hedge accounting relationships is as follows:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
€'000 €000 €000 €'000
Cash flow hedges 1,665 1,178 1,565 1,178
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations (43,191) 50,929 (43,191) 50,929
(41,626) 52,107 (41,626) 52,107

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of losses under forward foreign exchange contracts deferred in the cash flow
hedging reserve total €1,588k (2020: losses of €1,336k). It is anticipated that the transactions will take place during the next
financial year at which time the amount deferred in equity will be included in the income statement.

As at 31 December 2021, all hedges were effective (in 2020 all hedges were effective).

As at 31 December 2021, all balance sheet positions reported as hedges of net investments in foreign operations were foreign
exchange contracts linked predominantly to US Dollars, except a liability of €0.5m linked to Swiss Francs (2020: asset of €0.3m)
and an asset of €0.1m linked to Japanese Yen (2020: Nil).
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24 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financiat statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to contro! the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the fliability is settled or the asset is
realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive income,
in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of €0.1m (2020: €0.1m) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these losses (2020: €Nil).

No deferred tax liability is recognised on temporary differences of €7m (2020: €14m) relating to the unremitted earnings of
overseas subsidiaries, as the Group is able to control the timings of the reversal of these temporary differences, and it is probable
that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in associates are
insignificant.
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24 Deferred tax (continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current

and prior reporting period.

Group

At 1 January 2020

Charge/(credit) to profit or loss
Charge direct to equity
Exchange differences

Effect of change in tax rate:

— income statement

- equity

At 31 December 2020

Charge/(credit) to profit or loss
Charge/(credit) direct to equity
Exchange differences

Effect of change in tax rate:

— income statement

— equity

At 31 December 2021

Company
At 1 January 2020

Charge/(credit) to profit or loss
Credit direct to equity

Effect of change in tax rate:

- income statement

- equity

At 31 December 2020

Charge/(credit) to profit or loss
Credit direct to equity

Effect of change in tax rate:

— income statement

- equity

At 31 December 2021
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Timing
Accelerated Timing differences
tax differences on income
depreciation on accruals recognition Hedges Other Tax losses Total
€'000 €000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
(1,870) (12,271) - 31) 643 (@) (583) (14,113)
(1,586) (2,648) (144) - (1) 685 (3,694)
- - - (480) - - (480)
139 - - - - 2) 137
(218) (1,372) - - 2 (100) (1,688)
(3,535) (16,291) (175) 163 - - (19,838)
1,681 556 76 - - - 2,213
- - - 135 - - 135
(37 - @ - - - (41)
(557) (4.492) - - - - (5,049)
(2,548) (20,227) (103) 298 - = (22,580)
Accelerated Timing
tax  differences
depreciation  on accruals Hedges Totat -
€'000 €000 €000 €'000
(1,516) (11,659) 643 (12,532)
(239) - (2,651) - (2,890)
- - (480) (480)
(179) (1,366) - (1,545)
(1,934) (15,676) 163 (17,447)
(55) 485 - 430
- - 135 135
(557) (4,492) - (5,049)
(2,546) (19,683) 298 (21,931)
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24 Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so. The following is the analysis
of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes: :

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
€'000 €'000 €'000 €000
Deferred tax liabilities 298 163 298 163
Deferred tax assets (22,878) (20,001) (22,229) (17,610)
(22,580) (19,838) (21,931) (17,447)
25 Share capital 2021 2020
€'000 €'000
Authorised, issued and fully paid:

81 miilion ordinary shares of €1 each 81,000 81,000

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no right to fixed income.

52 of 55



EDF Trading Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

26 Hedging and translation reserves

Group Company
NIFO and Foreign NIFO and
Cash Flow Currency Cash Flow
Hedging Translation Hedging
Reserve Reserve Total Reserve Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €000 €'000
At 1 January 2020 (126,768) 57,695 (69,073) 2,558 2,558
Exchange differences - (113,127)  (113,127) - -
Cash flow hedge: fair value losses in the year (2,897) - (2,897) (2,897) (2,897)
Cash flow hedge: released from equity to profit or loss 294 - 294 294 294
Tax on fair value gains in year ) 480 - 480 480 480
NIFO hedge: fair value gains in the year 74,317 - 74,317 - -
At 31 December 2020 (54,574) (55,432)  (110,006) 435 435
Exchange differences - 98,470 98,470 - -
Cash flow hedge: fair value losses in the year (3,069) - (3,069) (3,069) (3,069)
Cash flow hedge: released from equity to profit or loss 3,455 - 3,455 3,455 3,455
Tax on fair value losses in year (135) - (135) (135) (135)
NIFO hedge: fair value losses in the year (92,217) - (92,217) - -
NIFO hedge: released from equity to profit or loss on disposal (2,373) - (2,373) - -
Recycling of FCTR through P&L on disposal of subsidiary - 1,049 1,049 - -
At 31 December 2021 (148,913) 44,087 (104,826) 686 686

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of gains and losses on hedging instruments deemed effective in cash flow
and NIFO hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in profit or loss only when the
hedged transaction impacts the profit or loss, or is included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item, consistent
with the applicable accounting policy.

Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations, which relate to subsidiaries
only, from their functional currency into the Group’s presentational currency, being euro, are recognised directly in the translation
reserve until the disposal or liquidation of the investment. Gains and losses on hedging instruments that are designated as
hedges of net investments in foreign operations are included in the hedging reserve until the disposal or liquidation of the hedged
foreign operation.

Cash flow hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.
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27 Commitments and contingencies

Group Company
Lease commitments 2021 2020 2021 2020
Lease payments recognised as an expense in the year 1,028 1,332 876 1,198

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which have been recognised as lease liabilities and included in Borrowings. The below schedule presents the
maturity analysis of these lease liabilities: ‘

2021 2021

€'000 €'000

Due in one year 3,020 2,918
Due in the second to fifth years inclusive 9,027 8,721
After five years 23,948 23,949
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 35,996 - 35,588
Lease liabilities included in the balance sheet 28,200 27,792
of which: current: ‘ 2,361 2,334
non-current: 25,839 25,458

28,200 27,792

The Group leases office properties and buildings. As these leases meet the definition of a lease under IFRS16, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets and related lease liabilities for these contracts. The carrying value of the right-of-use assets are
included in property, plant and equipment, and the depreciation of right-of-use assets is included in the total depreciation charge
(refer to note 14 “"Property, plant and equipment"). The income charge on the lease liabilities is included in Finance Cost (as
detailed in note 9 "Finance costs").

Bank guarantees and letters of credit
The Group uses bank guarantees and letters of credit with various counterparties in relation to energy trading and transportation

activities. No material losses are likely to arise from such commitments. The value of these commitments for the Group at the year
end is €3.16bn (2020: €1.01bn). The Group has committed to providing a credit facility to a related party, EDFT North America,
capped at USD 800m (€703m), and to Jera Global Markets, capped at USD 884m (€865m).

28 Related party transactions

Trading transactions

During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties:

Net Trading Margin

2021 2020
Group €'000 €'000
EDF Group . 4,517,205 (547,484)
Associates 2,227,729 (111,372)
6,744,934 (658,856)

Company
EDF Group 4,517,205 (547,484)
Subsidiaries 103 (10,822)
Associates 2,253,008 (106,128)
6,770,316 (664,434)

54 of 55



EDF Trading Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

28 Related party transactions (continued)

The following amounts were outstanding at the balance sheet date:

Amounts owed Amounts owed
by related parties to related parties

2021 2020 2021 2020
Group . : €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
EDF Group 2,988,270 767,940 5,200,644 1,180,210
Associates 611,075 198,444 9,583 18,977
3,599,345 966,384 5,210,227 1,199,187

Company
EDF Group 2,785,707 694,130 5,139,730 1,179,025
Subsidiaries 580,476 300,837 410,068 245,592
Associates 608,991 195,449 7,056 15,648
3,985,174 1,190,416 5,556,854 1,440,265

Sales and traded purchases were made at market price discounted to reflect the quantity of goods and the relationships between
the parties. The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash.

Liquidity funding

EDFT’s funding facilities are wholly provided by EDF. EDFT also participates in EDF cash pooling and revolving credit facility
arrangements. The facilities are reviewed frequently and EDFT produces cash flow forecasts that are stress tested to ensure that
EDFT has sufficient liquidity to withstand stressed market conditions or severe market events. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group has total available liquidity of €4.22bn (2020: €5.08bn). EDFT also has a €60m uncommitted overdraft facility provided by
EDF.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity management within EDFT has two principal purposes. Firstly, to ensure that sufficient cash is available to meet all
contractual commitments as they fall due and, secondly, to ensure that we have sufficient funding to withstand stressed market
conditions or an extreme event.

The Group’s liquid resources include amounts placed under cash pooling arrangements with EDF. The Group pools euro, sterling
and US dollar cash balances on a daily basis. The cash pooled balances are interest bearing and are callable by EDFT on
demand.

Loans to related parties Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
) €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Loans to associates 433,572 10,408 - -
433,572 10,408 - -

29 Events after the balance sheet date

There have been no significant events since the balance sheet date that require disclosure.

30 Ultimate parent company

Electricité de France S.A. (“EDF"), incorporated in France, is the ultimate parent undertaking of the largest and smallest Groub for

which group accounts are prepared, and is the controlling entity. Copies of the Group accounts of EDF are publicly available and
can be obtained from the registered office at 22-30 Avenue de Wagram, 75008 Paris, France.
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